





CONTENTS

Contents	2
About this Document	3
Non-Disclosure	3
Copyright	3
Document Control	3
Contact	3
Multi Currency	4
Multi Currency CRM Setup	4
Step 1. Create the Application Currency and Transaction Currency	4
Step 2. Set the Application Currencies to the Company Details	6
Step 3. Set the Change Paid Currency in the Company Details	8
Step 4. Variant Price Lists	8
Step 5. Payment Methods and Multi Currency	10
Step 6. Booking Payments and Multi Currency	12
The POS and Multi Currency Use	14
Step 1. Selecting the Currency on the POS	14
Step 2. Completing Payment and receiving Change	15
Cash Handling	17
Step 1. Setting the Operator & Witness Pin in the Company Details	17
Step 2. Select the Booking Operators who can act as a Witness	
Step 3. Setting the Till Pod Limit in the channel	
Step 4. Cash Handling Sesssion Report Print Transform	
Step 5. Terminal Float Sessions	22
The POS and Cash Handling Use	25
Step 1. Starting a Terminal Float Session	25
Step 2. Till Lift/ Till Drop/ Exchange	27
Step 3. Cash Handling Report	
Step 4. Ending a Terminal Float Session	
Till Pod Limit	



ABOUT THIS DOCUMENT

This document has been prepared as a User Guide for the Multi Currency and Cash Handling functionality in CRM 2015.

NON-DISCLOSURE

All information contained in this document is to be treated as confidential information provided for the purpose of using Green 4 Solutions modules.

COPYRIGHT

© Green 4 Solutions Ltd

While every effort has been made to ensure the accuracy of the information contained in this publication, the information is supplied without representation or warranty of any kind, is subject to change without notice and does not represent a commitment on the part of Green 4 Solutions Limited. Green 4 Solutions Limited therefore, assumes no responsibility and shall have no liability, consequential or otherwise, of any kind arising from this material or any part thereof, or any supplementary materials subsequently issued by Green 4 Solutions Limited. Green 4 Solutions Limited to ensure the accuracy of this material.

DOCUMENT CONTROL

Version	Date	Change	Initials
V1.0	09/10/2015	This is a new document	WL

CONTACT

Any correspondence should be addressed to:

Product Development

Green 4 Solutions Limited 16-17 Midland Court Central Park Lutterworth Leicestershire LE17 4PN UK

Phone: +44 (0) 845 508 8149

Email: support@green4solutions.com

Web: www.green4solutions.com



MULTI CURRENCY

The Multi Currency functionality allows different currencies to be created within CRM, which can then be used within the POS to purchase products. The currency exchange rate can also be controlled, as well as which currency actual change is to be given in.

MULTI CURRENCY CRM SETUP

The steps below outlines the process which must take place within CRM in order for the Multi Currency functionality to be enabled.

STEP 1. CREATE THE APPLICATION CURRENCY AND TRANSACTION CURRENCY

Firstly the Application Currency must be setup. For each currency that is to be used within the system an **Application Currency** must be created. Linked to the Application Currency is the **Transaction Currency**, this is where the Currency Code and Exchange rate are established for the Application Currency being created.

To create the Application Currency, the following instructions must be completed within CRM:

a) Select the Microsoft Dynamics CRM tab in the navigation bar and from the drop down choose **Product Management**.

Microsoft Dynamics O	RM 🗸 🏛 PRODUCT MAN	AG • Bookable Produ	cts i v	① Create	Enter Search Ment	P G	System Administ Sports	00
WORKPLACE	CORPORATE SALES	MARKETING	LOVALTY	CREEN 4 INTEGRAT		1)	PHODUCT MA	WAGEM

- b) Select the **Product Management** tab in the navigation bar and from the drop down choose **Application Currencies**
- c) A list of any previously created Application Currencies will be displayed. Select **New** on the ribbon.
- d) The Application Currency form will be displayed, complete the following details:



- Name. Enter the name of the Application Currency, for example GBP, Euro or U.S Dollar.
- **Transaction Currency.** Use the magnifying glass to search and lookup the relevant Transaction Currency. This is where the Currency Code and Exchange rate of the Application Currency is controlled.



If the relevant Transaction Currency does not exist within the system, select **New** in the Look Up Record window and complete the following:

File	• 🔓				<mark>@</mark> Help +
Currency: New Currence	У				
Currency : Information L General	General				
Related Common Audit History Application Currencies	Currency Type Currency Code * Currency Name * Currency Conversion	System Custom	Q	Currency Precision *	
Process Sessions Background Processes Real-time Processes	GBP 1.00 = *				

- Currency Type. Select System.
- Currency Code. Select the magnifying glass, this will display a large list of Currency Codes. Place a tick next to the relevant Currency Code. This should be the currency code of the Application Currency that is being created. For example if creating an Application Currency of U.S Dollar, select the USD Currency Code.
- **Currency Name.** When a Currency Code has been chosen the Currency Name will be automatically completed. **E.g. US Dollar.**
- **Currency Precision.** When a Currency Code has been chosen the Currency Precision will be automatically completed.
- **Currency Symbol.** When a Currency Code has been chosen the Currency Symbol will be automatically completed e.g. \$.
- Currency Conversion. The Currency Conversion field is where the Exchange rate that is being offered for this currency against the default base currency in your system is entered. For example if the base currency in your system is GBP and you were creating a Transaction Currency of USD the area would be displayed with 'GBP 1.00 = USD *Enter Conversion*.
- Select Save and Close on the ribbon.
- e) The Look Up Record window will be displayed, select **Ok**. The Transaction Currency field will be completed in the Application Currency form.
- f) Select **Save and Close** on the ribbon.



Note. A plugin has been created so that Application Currencies cannot be duplicated.



Example of an Application Currency and Transaction Currency Created

The tables below shows the fields that have been completed in an example Application and Transaction Currency form, created for this document.

Record Type	Name	Transaction Currency			
Application Currency	US Dollar	US Dollar			
Descard					
Record Type	Currency Code	Currency Name	Currency Precision	Currency Symbol	Currency Conversion

STEP 2. SET THE APPLICATION CURRENCIES TO THE COMPANY DETAILS

The next step is to add the <u>Application Currencies</u> created in the system to the Company Details. This will determine which Currencies will be displayed in the POS so that it possible for products to be sold using the applicable currency.

To set the Application Currency against the Company Details, complete the following instructions:

a) Within CRM, select the **Microsoft Dynamics CRM** tab in the navigation bar before scrolling across and choosing **Venue Management** from the drop down.

Microsoft Dynamics CRM		Dashboards 🗸
<	الله	🔅
SERVICE	VENUE MANAGEMENT	SETTINGS

b) Next select the **Venue Management** tab in the navigation bar and from the drop down choose **Company Details.**

🚈 Microsoft Dynamics CRM 🗸 🛛 🏠	VENUE MANAGEM 🗸 Bookab	e Resources 🛛 🗸	
Unknown52			
	coperators Channels		¥

- c) The Active Company Details page will be shown, double click to open it in form view
- d) Within the Company Details form select the small arrow on the navigation bar next to the name of the Company Details before selecting **Application Currencies**.



Microsoft Dynamics CRM	l 🗸 🏦 🛛 VENUE MANAGEI	vi ~	Company Details 🗸	Green 4 Group	~
Common		Proces	s Sessions		
	APPLICATION CURRENCIES	С ВАСК	GROUND PROCESSES	C* REAL-TIME PROC	ESSES

e) The Application Currency Associated View will be displayed, select **Add Existing Application Currency** in the ribbon.

Microsoft Dynamics CRM 🗸 👘 🕴 VENUE N	IANAGEM 👻 Company Details 🛛 🛩 Green 4 Group 🗍 🛩
COMPANY DETAILS : INFORMATION	
Green 4 Group	
Application Currency Associat	ed *
🗟 ADD EXISTING APPLICATI 🕃 BULK DELETE 📲 CHAR	RT PANE * 🖻 RUN REPORT * 🔞 EXPORT APPLICATION CU
Name 🛧	Iransaction C., Created On

- f) A text box will drop down from the Application Currency table, select the magnifying glass to search for the relevant Application Currency. If the record is not displayed, select Look Up More Records.
- g) The Application Currencies will now be linked to the Company Details. Select the **Save** icon in the bottom right hand corner of the form.

A Microsoft Dynamics CRM -	 VENUE MANAGEM	() Creater	Enter Search New	0	System Acteoret Sports	М	٥	1
сомили решиз і мисямилю						ţ,	*	2
Green 4 Group Application Curren	p icy Associated			here be to				p
Øg ADD DODTHIG ARMUCATL. 2 → Name 1 GRP	aux dilate 🔥 cuelt finite + 📄 aux septit + 📵 defort application cul. Transaction C Created Ce						Ŧ	10
GBP US Dolar	Pound Starting 01/06/3015 1837 US Code: 06/05/2015 1820							

Example of the Application Currencies that have been connected to the Company Details

The table below shows an example of the Application Currencies that have been set against the Company Details.

Record	Application
Type	Currencies
Company	GBP
Details	US Dollar



STEP 3. SET THE CHANGE PAID CURRENCY IN THE COMPANY DETAILS

It is possible to be able to choose the currency in which change will be provided. For example, although someone may pay in U.S Dollars change may only be given in British Pounds and this can be set within the Company Details form. The amount of change that is given if using a different currency to the one that the product has been paid in will be governed by the Currency Conversion rate entered in the <u>Transaction Currency</u>.

To set the Change Paid Currency complete the following process:

a) With the Company Details form still open, scroll down to the Payments section of the form and complete the following field:

Payments	
Change paid currency	

- **Change paid currency**. Use the magnifying glass to Look Up and select the <u>Application Currency</u> that change will be given in.
- b) Select the **Save** icon in the bottom right hand corner of the screen.

Example of the Change Paid Currency that has been set against the Company Details

The table below shows an example of the Change Paid Currency that has been set against the Company Details.

Record	Change Paid
Type	Currency
Company Details	GBP

STEP 4. VARIANT PRICE LISTS

Products which are going to be sold using different currencies will need to have a Variant Price List created with an <u>Application Currency</u> related to it. The Variant Price List will then be added to the Bookable Products where the pricing is to be entered.

Variant Price Lists must be created for each currency a product is to be sold in. For example, if selling products in more than one currency, e.g. British Pounds and U.S Dollars, a Variant Price List will need to be created for each of these, with both being added to the Bookable Product.

This means that when the currency is chosen on the POS, only those products using the Variant Price List which have an Application Currency that matches the chosen POS currency will be displayed. If no products are using a Variant Price List with an Application Currency that matches the currency selected on the POS, no products will appear on sale.



Note. It must be remembered that the standard process applies to placing a product on sale that is using a Variant Price List with an Application Currency linked to it. The Variant Price List must be added to a Channel Price List that is linked to an active Sales Plan.



To create a Variant Price List and add the Application Currency, complete the following instructions:

a) Select or hover over the **Microsoft Dynamics CRM** tab before scrolling across the drop down list of the navigation bar and selecting **Product Management**.

🥼 🗸 🏦 🛛 WORKPLACE 🗸	Dashboards 🖌 🛩		Ð	System Administ	٥	?
Recordings	PRODUCT MANAGEM	VENUE MANAGEMENT	Ф MEMBERSHIP	PROMOTIONS		2

b) Next, in the Product Management area of CRM, select the **Product Management** tab before scrolling across the drop down list of the navigation bar and selecting **Variant Price Lists**.

¼ Microsoft Dynamics CRM ↓	PRODUCT MANAG	🗸 Variant Types 🗸	
< THE YARIANT PRICE LISTS ✓ VAI	RIANT TYPES	₩ VAT CODES	¥ VAT RATES ⊻

c) A list of currently active Variant Price List view will be displayed. Select New on the ribbon.



d) The Variant Price List form will be displayed. Complete the following details:

🚧 Microsoft Dynamics CRM 🗸 📫 PRODUC	T MANAG 🗸 Variant Price Lists	 New Variant Price List 	🕀 Create
🕞 SAVE 🛱 SAVE & CLOSE 🕂 NEW 🗐 FORM EDITOR	4		
VARIANT PRICE LIST : INFORMATION			
New Variant Price List			
General			
Name*		Price List Status	s* Test
Application Currency			
Prices			

- Name. Enter a name for the Variant Price List.
- **Price List Status.** Select the Price List Status from the drop-down list. Only Price Lists with a status of Active will be used to provide pricing information.



- **Application Currency.** Use the magnifying glass to look up and select the relevant <u>Application Currency.</u>
- a) Select Save and Close on the ribbon. A new Variant Price List must be created for each Application Currency that products will be sold. They must then be added to the applicable Bookable Product in the normal manner where the price is entered. Also ensure it has been added to a Channel Price List that is linked to an Active Sales Plan.

Example of Variant Price Lists that have a linked Application Currency

The table below shows an example of the Variant Price Lists that have been created with Application Currencies linked to them.

Record Type	Name	Application Currency	Price List Status
Variant Price List	Standard Pricing (GBP)	GBP	Active
Variant Price List	Standard Pricing (USD)	USD	Active

STEP 5. PAYMENT METHODS AND MULTI CURRENCY

The Payment Methods that give the option for the currency to be switched, when paying for a product, must be flagged to allow optional currency payment. Furthermore the <u>Application Currencies</u>, which can also be switched when using the applicable Payment Method, must also be related to the Payment Method.

To allow the Payment Method to have optional currency payment, allowing the currency to be changed when paying for a product, complete the following setup within CRM:

a) Within CRM, select the **Microsoft Dynamics CRM** tab in the navigation bar before scrolling across and choosing **Venue Management** from the drop down.

Microsoft Dynamics CRM		Dashboards 🗸
<	個	Ö
SERVICE	VENUE MANAGEMENT	SETTINGS

b) Next select the **Venue Management** tab in the navigation bar and from the drop down choose **Payment Methods**.



- c) The Active Payment Methods view will be displayed, select and open the relevant Payment Method form, such as Cash.
- d) With the Payment Method form open, complete the following:



Allow optional currer Yes

- Allow optional currency payment. Select Yes for a drop down to appear in the Payment Method area of the POS where it is possible to select a different currency to complete the payment in. The conversion rate will be worked out via the value entered in the <u>Transaction Currency</u>. Change will be given in the currency entered into <u>the Change</u> <u>Paid Currency</u> field of the Company Details form.
- e) Select the **Save** icon in the bottom right hand corner of the form.
- f) Next the different Optional Currencies that will be available to select from when completing a payment with this Payment Method must be related to the Payment Method.
- g) Select the small arrow in the navigation bar next to the name of the payment method, from the drop down scroll across and select **Optional Currencies**.



h) The Application Currency Associated View will be displayed, select **Add Existing Application Currencies** in the ribbon.

Microsoft Dynamics CRM 🖌 🏫 🏫	VENUE MANAGEM	🛩 Payment M	dethods 👻 Cash 👻
PAYMENT METHOD : INFORMATION			
Cash			
Application Currency A	ssociated	×	
ADD EXISTING APPLICATE.		🗈 RUN REPORT *	EXPORT APPLICATION CU.,
Name 🛧	Transaction	C Created On	

 A drop down will appear, use the magnifying glass to search and select the relevant <u>Application</u> <u>Currencies</u>. If the applicable Application Currencies cannot be found, select Look Up More Records and add them from the list. When the currencies have been added these will become Optional Currencies and thus can be selected to change the currency to pay for a product on the POS.



AGEM Payment Methods - Cash -
···· *
··· NE ▼ 🕑 RUN REPORT ▼ 🔞 EXPORT APPLICATION C
action C Created On
terling 01/09/2015 10:37
r 09/09/2015 10:04

j) Select the **Save** icon in the bottom right hand corner of the form.

Example of the Payment Method form and Multi Currency

The table below shows an example flag set in the Payment Method form and the Optional Currencies related to it.

Record Type	Allow Optional Currency Payment	Related Optional Currencies
Payment Method	Yes	GBP
		HUF
		US Dollar

STEP 6. BOOKING PAYMENTS AND MULTI CURRENCY

After a booking has been made with a payment of a different currency a Booking Payment will be created which will be linked to the Booking. Within the Booking Payment form, details of Tendered Amount and which currency this was taken will be shown as well as the Change Amount and in which currency this was given. Moreover, the Tendered Amount Exchange Rate and Change Amount Exchange Rate will be displayed in this form.

To access the Booking Payments form, complete the following instructions within CRM:

a) Select the **Microsoft Dynamics CRM** tab in the navigation bar before scrolling across and choosing **Bookings**.

Microsoft Dynamics	CRM 🗸 🏦 VENUE I	MANAGEM 👻 Payment Metho	ods 🗸 🛛 Cash 🗸	Create Enter S
WORKPLACE	SALES	MARKETING	LOYALTY	BOOKINGS

- b) A list of Active Bookings will be displayed, use the search for records text box to find a relevant booking where multi-currency has been used. Upon finding a Booking select and open it in form view.
- c) Within the Booking form, select the small arrow next to the name of the Booking and from the drop down select **Booking Payments** in the navigation area.



Microsoft Dynamics CRM	🗸 💼 🕴 BOOKINGS 🗸	Bookings 🔍 order 28/08/	2015 1
	BOOKING PAYMENTS	BOOKING PRODUCTS	BOOKING QUESTION ANS

- d) The Booking Payment Associated View will be shown, select and open the Booking Payment.
- e) Within the Booking Payment form, find the **Cash Handling** section, these fields will highlight the following:

▲ Cash Handlin	9			
Tendered				
Tendered Amount	60.00	Tendered Amount Currency	GBP	Q
Tendered Amount Exchange Rate	1.000000000			
Change				
Change Amount	33.33	Change Amount Currency	GBP	Q
Change Amount Exchange Rate	1.000000000			

Tendered:

- **Tendered Amount.** This will display the amount of money that was given.
- Tendered Amount Exchange Rate. The tendered amount exchange rate will be shown here.
- **Tendered Amount Currency.** The currency of the tendered amount will be displayed here.

Change:

- Change Amount. The amount of change that has been given will be shown here.
- Change Amount Exchange Rate. The Change Amount Exchange Rate will be displayed here.
- Change Amount Currency. The currency in which the change was given will be displayed here.



THE POS AND MULTI CURRENCY USE

The Multi Currency functionality allows different currencies to be created within CRM that can be used within the POS for products to be purchased. Change will always be given in the Change Paid Currency that has been set within CRM.

STEP 1. SELECTING THE CURRENCY ON THE POS

The currency can be changed in the POS to control what currency the products appear on sale in. To change the Currency inside the POS, complete the following:

a) Select the **Currency** tab, a drop down will appear displaying the available Currencies that can be used on the POS.

StadiumTest	Comment : GRP. C	th Handling Till flog	ut Open TE LOOK	Lagout	there	ince .
Current Booking [Find Booking] Find Seat [Tabs Customer Coupon Cashlees Accounts Other Acco	en Gal		Reference No.(
	MD		- Barne	Seats 1	Uvel Qtv	Line
Petros Serve UPer	8.0 8 .					
	40.P					
			Electron Acad Persona		Restaura	Sport Charlos
			Electronic Acad Protocol	Add Commen	- Reconstruction	Speed Cherkau

b) From here select the appropriate Product to purchase, to cost of the product will be displayed in the Currency that has been selected.

<u>n</u>							/ENUE S	StadiumTest	VERSION: 3.7.0	11 (Online)	
StadiumT	est								Currency : USD	Cash Handling	Till Report
Current Booking	-	Tabs	Customer	Coupon	Cashless	Accounts	Other	Access Ga	te		
Restricted View (Adult) \$ 20.00 (1.Persen(a))									д ту: -	0 +
Restricted View (Junio \$ 15.00 (1 Person(s)	0.0									QTY: -	0 +
Restricted View (Senio \$ 10.00 1 Person(s)	d									QTY: -	0 +
193 (100 N.)											CONTINUE



STEP 2. COMPLETING PAYMENT AND RECEIVING CHANGE

Upon reaching the Payment Method window it is possible to change the currency in which payment will be received in. Using the Conversion Rate entered into CRM this will convert the cost of the product into the newly selected currency correctly making it a simple task for the POS operator to request the correct payment cost.

Additionally, any change is only given in one set currency (This has been set in CRM) If a customer is to receive change, again this will be converted accordingly into the appropriate change currency whilst issuing a message to the POS Operator on the correct amount to give.

To complete a Payment when changing the currency, complete the following:

a) With the appropriate Payment Method window open, select the Currency button.

ω.					
Cash			P	Booking Totalis romotion Valueis Amount Paidis	20.00
			P Total S	Balance to Pays5 Syment Charges5 or Full Payment15	20.00 0.00 20.00
			An	iount Tenderedi\$	maney : 6820
Ropest (5.00)	Spik	1014	820	ŧn	n
Dationer Details Joseph Walk Myli Street, Lutle		pomissistions.co enhine	es)	This Payment:\$	20.00
	on Ernal to Caltor			-	Ž Print Receipt
C Sens Contreas	on Arnual to Operat	lar.			

b) A drop down will appear showing all of the Optional Currencies associated to this Payment Method.

		- a 🔣	Street
Cash	Booking Total:5 Promotion Value:5 Amount Paid:5	20.00 0.00 0.00	rend be nicted
	Balance to Pay:5 Payment Charge:5 Total for Full Payment:5	29.00 0.00 26.00	h Biuć 13/30
	Amount Tendered:5		
Nepest (1.00) Spit TUTAL	\$20 \$10	Currency : 1750	
	This Payment:5	aun -	
Catamer Detain: Joseph Walker (Lwalkor@green4solutions.com) High Street, Latterworth , Laicastershire	5	HAN	
Send Confirmation Email to Culturer. Send Confirmation Email to Operator.		VSD	
	Pay	Ext	

c) Select the Optional Currency that the payment is wished to be changed to. The currency will be converted using the rate entered into CRM.



a	- 5
Cash Booking Total:£ Promotion Value:£ Amount Paid:£	0.00
Balance to Pay:£ Payment Charge:£ Total for Full Payment:£ Amount Tendered:£	0.00 26.67
	Currency : GBP
Repeat (0.00) 5plit TOTAL 620 610	43
Customer Details:	26.67
Joseph Walker (j.walker@greentsolutions.com) High Street, Lutterworth , Leicestershire	
Send Confirmation Email to Customer. Send Confirmation Email to Operator.	🖌 Print Receip
Pay	Exit

d) Select the amount of cash given and choose pay. If change is to be given a new window will appear showing the amount of change that must be given for this payment, this will be converted to the currency that has been entered as the Change Paid Currency in CRM.





CASH HANDLING

The Cash Handling functionality allows cash to be easily handled within the POS interface. The functionality allows for new float sessions to be quickly created and ended when necessary as well as allowing till drops, lifts and exchanges. Moreover the Cash Handling process has the ability to work with multi currencies and all Cash Handling transactions are recorded within CRM.

With this comes the ability for a Cash Handling Report to be generated, giving precise information on the initial and final float amount as well as recording any lifts and drops into the float session.

STEP 1. SETTING THE OPERATOR & WITNESS PIN IN THE COMPANY DETAILS

Within the Company Details sits the options to control whether an Operator or Witness require a pin to add or take money out of the till.

To control whether an Operator or Witness requires a pin, complete the following details:

a) Within CRM, select the **Microsoft Dynamics CRM** tab in the navigation bar before scrolling across and choosing **Venue Management** from the drop down.

Microsoft Dynamics CRM	M 🗸 💼 WORKPLACE 🗸	Dashboards 🗸
د محبر	個	🔅
SERVICE	VENUE MANAGEMENT	SETTINGS

b) Next select the **Venue Management** tab in the navigation bar and from the drop down choose **Company Details.**

Microsoft Dynamics CRM 🗸 🏦 VENUE MANAGEM 🗸		Bookable Resources 🗸				
Unknown52	OPERATORS	⊻ 🗭 CHARITIES	¥ [

- c) The Active Company Details page will be shown, double click to open it in form view
- d) Within the Company Details form, scroll down to the **Terminal Float Session Options** and complete the following:

Terminal Float Session Opti	ons	
Operator Pin Require	Witness Pin Required	

- Operator Pin Required. Select Yes if a pin is required to be entered into the POS when an operator puts money into or takes money out of the till. Select No if a pin is not required for this process.
- Witness Pin Required. Select Yes if a pin is required to be entered into the POS by a witness when an operator puts money into or takes money out of the till. Select No if a pin is not required for this process.
- a) Select the **Save** icon in the bottom right hand corner of the form.



STEP 2. SELECT THE BOOKING OPERATORS WHO CAN ACT AS A WITNESS

This step can be skipped if **Witness Pin Required** has been set to **No** during <u>Step 1</u>. If the **Witness Pin Required** has been set to **Yes**, it is important to distinguish which Booking Operator can use their Pin and act as a Witness. For example the Ticket Office Manager may be the only person who can do this.

To set Booking Operators to be Witnesses, complete the following:

a) Within CRM, select the **Microsoft Dynamics CRM** tab in the navigation bar before scrolling across and choosing **Venue Management** from the drop down.

🌆 Microsoft Dyna	mics CRM 🗸		Dashboards \mid 🗸
< * /	1ª	i -	\$
SERVICE	VI	ENUE MANAGEMENT	SETTINGS

b) Next select the **Venue Management** tab in the navigation bar and from the drop down choose **Booking Operators.**

Microsoft Dynamics CRM 🗸 🏫 VENUE MANAGEM			Bookable Resources	~			
Unknown52		_					
BOOKABLE RESOURC		≚ ₩	× NNELS		¥	COMPANY DETAILS	¥

- c) The Active Booking Operators page will be shown, select and open the Booking Operator whose pin can be used as a Witness Pin.
- d) Within the Booking Operator form, ensure the following flag has been set:

Cash Handling Admi Yes

- **Cash Handling Admin.** Select **Yes** for the Booking Operator to be able to use their pin as a Witness Pin during the Cash Handling process in the POS.
- e) Select the **Save** icon in the bottom right hand corner of the form. Repeat the above process for any other Booking Operators who can act as witnesses.

STEP 3. SETTING THE TILL POD LIMIT IN THE CHANNEL

A Till Pod Limit can be set with the Channel settings. This will control the amount of money that can be held in the till until a warning will be displayed if the amount has been exceeded. Furthermore a setting in the Channel controls if the Terminal Float Session window will automatically open when the POS is opened, if no current session is taking place.

To set the cash handling options within the Channel, complete the following instructions:

a) Within CRM, select the **Microsoft Dynamics CRM** tab in the navigation bar before scrolling across and choosing **Venue Management** from the drop down.



Microsoft Dynamics CRM 🗸 🗈 VENUE MANAGEM 🗸 Company Details 🗸							
<	الله	🔅					
SERVICE	VENUE MANAGEMENT	SETTINGS					

b) Next select the **Venue Management** tab in the navigation bar and from the drop down choose **Channels.**

Microsoft Dynamics C	CRM	~ f t	VENUE MAN	IAGEN	I V	Company De	etails 🗸
Unknown52							
	¥	H BOOKING	OPERATORS	¥	CHAN	INELS	×

- c) A list of Active Channels will be displayed, select and open the relevant Channel e.g POS
- d) With the Channel form open, scroll down to the Cash Handling section and ensure the following are completed:

Pod Limits			
THE 111 1		THE 111 YOM 1	
Till Pod Limit		Till Pod Limit Warnin	
Session Turns on Cas	No		

Pod Limits

- **Till Pod Limit.** Enter the price in which when the tills reaches this figure a warning will be displayed, pre-empting for the till to be emptied.
- **Till Pod Limit Warning Interval.** Enter the number of bookings that have to be made for a Till Pod Limit Warning message to appear on the POS. For example, if 3 is entered and the Till Pod Limit has been exceeded, a message asking for a till pod lift to be carried out will be shown after every 3 bookings made on the POS.
- Session Turns on Cash Handling. If set to Yes, when the POS is opened the Terminal Float Session window will automatically be displayed if there is no current Terminal Float Session taking place.
- e) Select the **Save** icon in the bottom right hand corner of the screen.



STEP 4. CASH HANDLING SESSSION REPORT PRINT TRANSFORM

A Print Transform must be added for a Cash Handling Report to be displayed when they are selected in the POS. The report will show details of the Initial Float, any Lifts and Drops into the float as well as an Expected Final Float estimate.

To create the Session Report Print Transform, complete the following details within CRM:

a) Select the **Microsoft Dynamics CRM** tab in the navigation bar and from the drop down scroll across and select **Settings**.

Microsoft Dynamics CRM		Dashboards 🛛 🛩
K SERVICE	VENUE MANAGEMENT	SETTINGS

b) Select the Settings tab in the navigation bar before choosing Print Transforms form the drop down.

A Microsoft Dynamics CRM	- n	SETTINGS ~	G	ommunication Set)	Create	Enter Search It
Green 4 Settings	御 COMMUN	ICATION P.	¥	H) Rowling Settings	¥	(++) CONFIGURATIONS	16	HONTERS Y	HUNT TRANS	SFORMS 2

c) A list of Active Print Transform will be displayed. Select New in the ribbon.



d) A new Print Transform for will open, complete the following details:

🛦 Microsoft Dyna	amics CRM 🚽 🐧 SETTINGS -	Print Transforms -	New Print Transform			① Create	Enter Search Item	p 📑	System Advatrat Sports	0
BINNE BISANES	KOLOSE + NEW III KORALEDITOR									+.+
General										
Gerteral News [*] Writer Job Type Single Piver Job	~ No			Alimer Drune Type Une XILT -	in Ne					
XSLT +										
XIIIT Solpts										

General

- Name. Enter a Name for the Print Transform, for example Session Report.
- Printer Job Type. Select the magnifying glass to open up a Look Up records window, choose New. A new Printer Job Type form will open, enter the Name; SessionReport before selecting Save and Close on the ribbon and choosing OK in the Look Up Record window. The new Printer Job Type will have been added to the Print Transform form.
- **Printer Driver Type.** Use the magnifying glass to look up and find the **Windows** Printer Driver Type.



XSLT

- **Transform.** Enter the Cash Handling Session Report Print Transform here. This can be found by contacting a Green 4 Consultant.
- e) Select **Save and Close** on the ribbon. Next the Print Transform must be linked to the relevant Terminal.
- f) Select the **Microsoft Dynamics CRM** tab from the navigation bar and from the drop down choose Venue **Management**.

4	Microsoft Dynamics CRM	✓ 🖬 se	ttings ~	Print Transforms 🗸
<	مو SERVICE		ACEMENT	Ö SETTINGS
	SERVICE	VENUE MAN	AULIVILINI	SETTINGS

g) Select the **Venue Management** tab in the navigation bar before scrolling across and selecting **Terminals.**

Microsoft Dynamics	CRM	 ↑ 	VENUE MAN	NAGEN	1 ~	Bookable Resources
<	¥	SEAT CLAS	SSES	¥	+ TERM	⊻ IINALS

- h) A list of Active Terminals will be displayed, select and open the Terminal that the Cash Handling Session Report is to be linked to.
- i) With the relevant Terminal open in form view ensure that the following two fields have been completed.

Session Report Print:	Session Report Trans	
-----------------------	----------------------	--

- Session Report Printer. Use the magnifying glass to search and look up the Printer that is going to be used to print out the Cash Handling Session Report
- Session Report Transform. Use the magnifying glass to search and look up the Session Report Print Transform previously created.
- j) Select the **Save** icon in the bottom right hand corner of the form.



STEP 5. TERMINAL FLOAT SESSIONS

Each time a float session is opened in the POS, a new Terminal Float Session will be created within CRM. This will display the Start Time and (if applicable) End Time of the float, the Operator who added or removed the float as well as any Float Add/Removal witnesses.

Linked to a Terminal Float Session are the Booking Payments that were made during the Float Sessions. A Terminal Float Session Transaction is linked, which displays all the transactions that have taken place during the float session such as the Initial Float as well as any Lifts and Drops.

To view the Terminal Float session and the related entities linked to it, complete the following:

a) Within CRM, select the **Microsoft Dynamics CRM** tab in the navigation bar before scrolling across and choosing **Venue Management** from the drop down.



b) Next select the **Venue Management** tab in the navigation bar and from the drop down choose **Terminals.**

Microsoft Dynamics	CRM	~ f t	VENUE MAN	IAGEM	I V	Terminals 🗸	Ticke
<	¥	HH SEAT CLAS	SSES	¥	H TERM	INALS	¥

- c) A list of the currently Active Terminals will be displayed, select and open the Terminal which the Terminal Float Sessions should be viewed in.
- d) Within the Terminal form, select the small arrow in the navigation bar next to the Name of the Terminal and from the drop down select **Terminal Float Session**.



e) The Terminal Float Sessions Associated View will be displayed, all the Float Sessions related to the Terminal that have either been Started and Ended, as well as any that are ongoing will be shown.



🚈 Microsoft Dynamics CRM 🗸 📫 VENUE MANAGEM 🗸 Terminals 🗸 Ticket Office Till 🗸	
Ticket Office Till	
Terminal Float Session Associated 👻	
🕂 ADD NEW TERMINAL FLO 🛱 ADD EXISTING TERMINAL 🕞 BULK DELETE 📲 CHART PANE 👻 🗈 RUN REPORT 👻 🕅 EXP	ORT TERMINAL FLOAT
✓ Terminal ↑ Start Date Tim End Date Tim	
Ticket Office Till 01/09/2015 08:00	

f) Double click on a Terminal Float Session to open it in form view.

Microsoft Dyna	mics CRM 🗸 👘 🛛 venue managem 🛩 Terminals 🔍 D1 - 1409201511141 🕷		🕀 Create
	nate III delite on email a unix & run workflow III start dullog (Brun veport ssion : information 9201511:41		
General			
Nane*	01-1408301511.41		
Terminal	Ticher, Office, Till		
Session Start			
Start Date Time	01/09/2015 08:00	Fituat added by	Steve Worthing
Float Add Witness	Steve Worthing		
Seulon End			
End Date Time	9499 	Ploat Removed By	22
Float Removal Withur	(H)		
Notes			

- g) The Terminal Float Session form will display the Session Start and End Date/Time as well as who the float was added and removed by. Any Witness that has Added or Removed a float will also be displayed.
- h) Select the small arrow next to the name of the Terminal Float Session. This will display the related options of **Booking Payments** and **Terminal Float Session Transactions**.

Microsoft Dynamic	s CRM 🖌 🏠 🕴 VENUE MANA	GEM • Terminals •	D1 - 1409201511;41 👻		Create	Enter Search I
		CONNECTIONS		BOORING PAYMENTS	TERMINAL R	OAT SESSIO

- i) Select **Booking Payments** for all Booking Payments that have been made whilst the selected Terminal Float Session has been opened to be shown.
- j) Select **Terminal Float Session Transactions** to display the Transaction that have taken place. This will display the Initial and Final Float as well as the Lifts and Drops that have occurred during the session.



ii Mi	icrosoft Dynami	ics CRM 🤟 1	▲ VENUE MA	NAGEM • 1	Terminals 👻 D1	- 1409201511:41	T
TER	MINAL FLOAT SESSI	ON : INFORMATE	ON				
D	1 - 1409	201511:	41				
Та	rminal Elo	at Corriou	Transact	tio +			
	erminal Flo			19.20 million and a state	∎ CHART PANE •	🖻 RUN REPORT +	EXPORT TERMINAL FLOAT.
			ROSTING TERMINAL.	. 🖟 BULK DELETE	Transaction A.s.	🕑 RUN REPORT +	EXPORT TERMINAL PLOAT,
	ADD NEW TERMINAL	FLO 😰 ADD E	ROSTING TERMINAL.	. 🖟 BULK DELETE		🕑 RUN REFORT +	EXPORT TERMINAL FLOAT,
	ADD NEW TERMINAL	FLO 🖗 ADD E Transaction T Initial Roat	RISTING TERMINAL.	Transaction A.,	Transaction A.,	🕑 RUN REPORT +	EXPORT TERMINAL FLOAT,
	ADD NEW TERMINAL Greated On や 15/09/2015 12/39	FLO 😰 ADD E Transaction T Initial Roat	Currency Pound Sterling	Transaction A., E100.00	Transaction A	I RUN REPORT +	EXPORT TERMINAL FLOAT,



THE POS AND CASH HANDLING USE

The instructions below give information as to how the Cash Handling process should be carried out in the POS by a Booking Operator. Information can be found on Starting and Ending a float session as well as Till Lifts, Drops and Exchanges. Information is also given on how to gain a Cash Handling report.

STEP 1. STARTING A TERMINAL FLOAT SESSION

The first step is create and start a Terminal Float Session. If **Session Turns on Cash Handling** has been set to **Yes** within the POS Channel form of CRM, upon opening the POS the Terminal Float Session form will automatically appear if no float session is currently ongoing.

StadiumTes	st				Carrylice : GBP	Tech Needing	TŘ Repot	Daven Trill	LDOK	Lagost	Ren	Set
urrent Booking Fall	Booking Tind Soat	Taba Customer	Coopon Califiens Ac	counts Other Access	Gate				11	-		
								Reference N	n.:			
								Name		3	Int. Cty	Line
Patures	Seta	03w/										
			1	Tom	inal Picat Session			122				
			50) (10)	- Herrr								
			Aneut		Ourrency		1.4					
			Ansount		Currency							
			Operator PDN	112	WENESS PT		1.					
			CONTRACTOR PEN		WENESS PO							
			AM Fast	Taugue that	light a	221	12000					
			AAA Finat	Sautur Stat	Seco	e fied	Cantol					

Alternatively, select the Cash Handling tab, before choosing the Start/End Session button.

StadiumTes	it .			Currenty : 08F	Cash Handing Till Report	Open 16 LOOK	Logost Herne
Current Booking Find	Booking Find Seat	Tabs Customer Coup	on Cathless Accounts	Other Access Gala			
100		100				Reference No.: Name	Link Qty Li
Fixtures	Sere:	00ver					
	4	14					
			E	Cash Handling	- •		
			Start/End Ser	Lift/Shop/Exchange	Report		
					-		

To Start a Terminal Float Session, with the Terminal Float Session Window open, complete the following details:



Amount		Currency	
		- Construction	1 dive
Amount		Currency	
Operator PIN		Witness PIN	
Operator PIN Add Float	Session Start	Witness PIN Session End	Cancel

a) Firstly the **Amount** of cash that is being added to the float should be entered and the **Currency** of this cash must be chosen from the drop down.

Amount	300	Currency	GBP	~

b) Upon entering the Amount of cash and the Currency, select **Add Float.** The Amount and Currency will be displayed in the Terminal Float Sessions table.

Amount	1	Сштенсу	G80 +
Amaurit. 100		Currency 08P	T
Operator PDN Add Float	Sesson Star	Witness PiN	Cancal

c) Next, select Session Start to begin the Terminal Float Session.



Note. If the flags **Operator Pin Required** and/or **Witness Pin Required** have been set to **Yes** in the Company Details form of CRM it will be necessary to enter an Operator and/or Witness PIN in order to start a session.

Operator PIN	Witness PIN	
--------------	-------------	--



STEP 2. TILL LIFT/ TILL DROP/ EXCHANGE

When a Terminal Float Session has started as is shown in <u>Step 1</u> it becomes possible to Lift, Drop or Exchange cash out or into the float session.

This can be done by completing the following:

a) Select the **Cash Handling** tab at the top of the POS, a new Cash Handling window will open.

9	Cash Handling	
Start/End Session	Lift/Drop/Exchange	Report
		1

- b) Select the Lift/Drop/Exchange button.
- c) The **Terminal Float Transactions** window will open, depending on your requirements complete the following:

	Terminal I	loat Transactions	
Amount		Currency	
Operator PIN	TELM	Witness PIN	Till Drop
Lift Amount	Carrency	-	
Drop Amount	Currency		1
Start Lift	Start Drop	Exchange	Cancel

Till Lifts and Till Drop

To complete a Till Lift or a Till Drop:

a) Enter the **Amount** of cash that is to be either lifted from or dropped into the till and the relevant **Currency** of the cash.

Amount	50	Currency	GBP	~

b) Next, select either the **Till Lift** or **Till Drop** button depending on your activity. The Lift Amount and Currency or Drop Amount and Currency will be displayed in the table of the Terminal Float Transactions window.

	Til Lift	Till Drop
Lift Amount	Currency	
50	GBP	
Drop Amount	Currency	
propression and		



c) Depending on the activity that is being undertaken, select the **Start Lift** or **Start Drop** button.



Note. If the flags **Operator Pin Required** and/or **Witness Pin Required** have been set to **Yes** in the Company Details form of CRM it will be necessary to enter an Operator and/or Witness PIN in order to start a Lift or Drop.

Operator PIN	Witness PIN	

Amount	Currency	GBP =
Operator PtN	Witness PD	274
	THUR	Till Drop
Lift Amount 50	Currency G8P	1
Drop Amount	Carrency	1

d) The Terminal Float Transaction window will close.

Exchange

If exchanging a certain amount of cash by Lifting and Dropping cash into and out of the float session at the same time, complete the following:

- a) Enter the **Amount** of cash that is going to be lifted into the till before choosing the **Currency**.
- b) Next, select the Till Lift button.
- c) Enter the **Amount** of cash that is going to be dropped into the till before choosing the **Currency**.
- d) The Lift and Drop Amounts entered will be displayed in the Terminal Float Transactions windows table.



	Terminal Float Transactions	
Amount	Currency	EUR ~
Operator PSN	Witness PIN	
	718 Lift	Till Drop
Lift Amount	Currency	
10	GBP	
Drop Amount	Currency	
10	EUR	
Start Lift	Start Drop Exchange	Cancel

e) Upon adding a Lift Amount and Drop Amount together the Exchange button will become activated. Select the **Exchange** button.



Note. If the flags **Operator Pin Required** and/or **Witness Pin Required** have been set to **Yes** in the Company Details form of CRM it will be necessary to enter an Operator and/or Witness PIN in to proceed with the Exchange.

Operator PIN		Witness PIN	
--------------	--	-------------	--

STEP 3. CASH HANDLING REPORT

For each Terminal Float Session that is started a Cash Handling Report is created. This Report gives details on the Initial Float, any Lifts and Drops into the float as well as an Expected Final Float estimate.

To view Cash Handling Reports, complete the following within the POS:

a) Select the Cash Handling tab at the top of the POS, a new Cash Handling window will open.



b) Select the Report button, the Cash Handling Report window will open.



Start Date	12/09/2015	End Date	14/09/2015	15
	Load Session	s Sessions Repo	rt Cance	
Session Name	Start Date	End Date		
d1 - 1409201514:53	9/14/2015 3:53:42 PM		Report	
d1 - 1409201514:09	9/14/2015 3:09:38 PM	9/14/2015 3:53:01 PM	Report	Ī
d1 - 1409201513:39	9/14/2015 2:39:42 PM	9/14/2015 3:08:39 PM	Report	ī
d1 - 1409201512;47	9/14/2015 1:47:39 PM	9/14/2015 2:39:24 PM		1.5

c) Firstly select the **Start** and **End Date** from which you would like to see the Reports for. Upon selecting the applicable dates, select the **Load Sessions** button.



- d) All Float Sessions and their reports that sit between the selected Start and End date will be displayed.
- e) The **Sessions Report** button can be selected for all of the Reports that have been loaded between the Start and End Date to be printed together.
- f) To Print an individual Cash Handling Report, select the **Report** button next to the Float Session that you would like to see the report for.

🔛 Start Date		ash Handling Report End Date	14/09/2015
	Load Session		
Session Name	Start Date	End Date	
d1 - 1409201514:53	9/14/2015 3:53:42 PM		Report
d1 + 1409201514:09	9/14/2015 3:09:38 PM	9/14/2015 3:53:01 PM	Report
d1 - 1409201513-39	9/14/2015 2:39:42 PM	9/14/2015 3:08:39 PM	Report
d1 + 1409201512:47	9/14/2015 1:4739 PM	9/14/2015 2:39:24 PM	



g) The Cash Handling report will be printed in the following format as the example below shows.

Session Repor	rt	d1 - 1409201514:53	Transaction Details;				
Float Details			Created On	Booking	Tender Currency	Tender Amount	Chang
Float Type	Amount	Currency.	2015-09-14T16:10:39.090	1032326	Pound Sterling	114.00	0.00
InitialFloat	100.00	Pound Sterling	2015-09-14T16:08:52.270	1032325	Pound Sterling	600.00	0.00
Lift	10.00	Pound Starting	2015-09-14T16:07:23.953	1032324	Pound Sterling	300.00	0.00
Drop Lift	10.00 60.00	US Dollar Pound Sterling					
Drop	50.00	Pound Sterling					
Amount In Det	ails						
Currency		Amount-In					
US Dollar		10.00					
Pound Sterling	0	1164.00					
Amount Out De	otails						
Currency		Amount-Out					
Pound Sterling	1	70.00					
Expected Final	i Float						
Currency		Expected Final					
US Dollar		10.00					
Pound Starling	US .	1094.00					
Actual Final Fic	oat Details						
Currency		Actual Final					

STEP 4. ENDING A TERMINAL FLOAT SESSION

When a Float Session is to be ended the following process must be carried out within the POS.

a) Select **the Cash Handling** tab before selecting the **Start/End Session** button from the Cash Handling window.

est				1	Carrency : Ger	Cash Handling	Till Report
Find Booking Find Seat	Tabs Customer	Coupon Cast	iless Accounts O	ther Access Gate	0		
Series	Offer						
	1						
			6	Cash	landling	-	
			Start, End Second	uti Uti/Dre	Tathinge	Report	
			Stath End Seiss	UR/Dro	Tintunge	Report	
	Find Booking Find Seat	Find Booking Find Seat Tabs Customer	Find Booking Find Seat Tabs Customer Coupon Cast	Find Booking Find Seat Tabs Customer Coupon Cashless Accounts Of Serve Office	Find Booking Find Seat Tabs Customer Coupon Cashless Accounts Other Access Gate Serve Other	Find Booking Find Seat Table Customer Coupon Ceshless Accounts Other Access Gate	End Booking Find Seat Table Customer Coupon Cashless Accounts Other Access Gate

b) The Terminal Float Session window will open.



	- iermini	al Float Session	
Amaunt		Currancy	GBP -
Amount		Currency	
Operator #IN		Witness Filt	

c) Enter the **Amount** of cash and **Currency** that is to be removed from the float.

Amount	5000	Currency	GBP	~

d) Select the **Remove Float** button. The **Amount** and **Currency** being removed will be displayed in the Terminal Float Session Windows table.

Amount	-	Currency	GBP +
Amount		Currency	
5000		GBP	1
Operator PIN		Witness PIN	
Operator PIN Remove Float	Sesson Start	Witness PIN Session End	Carcel

e) When all of the amount of cash and currency has been selected to be removed, select the **Session End** button.

		inal Float Session		
Amount		Currency	EUR	*
Amount		Currency		
5000		GBP		1
500		EUR		
		Toreau		
Operator PSN	Session Start	Witness PIN		ncel
Operator P3N	Session Start	Witness PIN	G	ncel





Note. If the flags **Operator Pin Required** and/or **Witness Pin Required** have been set to **Yes** in the Company Details form of CRM it will be necessary to enter an Operator and/or Witness PIN in order to end the session.

Operator PIN	Witness PIN	

f) The Cash Handling Window will be displayed, the Lift/Drop/Exchange button will become deactivated. The options to Start a new Session <u>(Step 1)</u> or receive a Report <u>(Step 3)</u> will remain activated.

)	Cash Handling	
Start/End Session	Lift/Drop/Exchange	Report
Start/End Session	Lift/Drop/Exchange	Report

TILL POD LIMIT

If the Till Pod Limit that has been entered into the Channel form on CRM has been exceeded upon payment of a Booking the message below will appear waring the Booking Operator that they should carry out a Till Lift as soon as possible.



*END OF DOCUMENT